ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 27, 2004
1:42 p. m

TAPE(S) 04-19, 20
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Co-Chair
Senat or Thonmas Wagoner, Co-Chair
Senator CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln
Senat or Donny O son

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 394

"An Act relating to a port developnent project on Lynn Canal,
providing legislative approval for the Alaska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority to issue bonds for the project;
and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SB 394 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 25
Rel ating to state agency construction and maintenance contracts
t hroughout the state.

MOVED SCR 25 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 391

"An Act relating to use of a snow machine within the Janes
Dalton H ghway corridor to establish, mintain, and service
traplines | ocated outside the corridor."

MOVED CSSB 391( TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 394

SHORT TI TLE: Al DEA BONDS FOR LYNN CANAL PORT
SPONSOR(s): RULES

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



04/ 22/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 22/ 04 (S) TRA, FIN
04/ 27/ 04 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17
Bl LL: SCR 25

SHORT TI TLE: STATE CONSTRUCTI OV MAI NTENANCE CONTRACTS
SPONSCR(s) : TRANSPORTATI ON

04/ 21/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 21/ 04 (S) TRA, STA

04/ 27/ 04 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: SB 391

SHORT TI TLE: DALTON H GHWMWAY TRAPLI NE ACCESS
SPONSCR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

04/ 20/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 20/ 04 (S) TRA, FIN
04/ 27/ 04 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

MR ZACK WARW CK

Staff to Senator Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 394.

MR. JIM McM LLAN

Deputy Director of Credit and Business Developnent Al aska
| ndustrial Devel opnment and Export Authority (Al DEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to SB 394.

MR TI M ARNOLD

V. P. and CGeneral WManager

Coeur Al aska Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions about Coeur d Alene
M nes Corporation relating to SB 394.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 394 that this project would
be beneficial to the Juneau area.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. MARK O BRI EN
Chi ef Contracts Oficer
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformati on on SCR 25.

MR. FRANK RI CHARDS
St at e Mai nt enance Engi neer
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to SCR 25.

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 391.

MR, MATT ROBUS

Director of WIldlife Conservation

Department of Fish & Gane

PO Box 25526

Juneau, AK 99802-5226

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that he was available to answer
questions on SB 391.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 04-19, SIDE A

CO- CHAIR JOHN CONDERY called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:42 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Lincoln, O son, Co-Chair Wgoner, and Co-
Chair Cowdery. Senator Therriault arrived while the neeting was
in progress. Also present was Representative Wyhrauch.

SB 394- Al DEA BONDS FOR LYNN CANAL PORT

The comm ttee took up SB 394.

MR ZACK WARW CK, staff to Senator Therriault, presented the
bill and testified that SB 394 authorizes Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority (AIDEA) to issue tax-exenpt

3
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



bonds to finance port and port related projects on Lynn Canal in
Sout heast Al aska, specifically for the Kensington Mne Project.
He noted that commttee nenbers have an overview of the
project’s re-design that would include a port from Cascade Poi nt
to Slate Creek Cove, and would use existing road systens that
woul d be upgraded to get to Kensington M ne. This is required
under statute for any project over $10 nillion. At this point,
these are estimated nunbers, but authorization was requested so
that if cost exceeds $10 nillion, tax-exenpt bonds would be
issued to finance this program This doesn’t guarantee funding
would go forward, it just provides authorization to |look at the
project. The project would still have to neet the four criteria
set out in statute.

MR JIM MM LLAN, Deputy D rector of Credit and Business
Devel opnent, AIDEA, testified that the bill pertains to two dock
facilities supporting the Kensington Gold Project, proposed to
be financed wunder this |egislation. There are tw basic
requi renents under | RS code addressing financing w th tax-exenpt
pr oceeds: t he docks nust be owned by a governnment entity, and
dock facilities nust be available for the likelihood of public
use. That determ nation has not been nmade yet. Because of the
| ocation of these two facilities, especially the one on the
northern end of the Berners Bay — Slate Creek — AIDEA s bond

counsel Wil | be seeking an IRS letter ruling for the
determnation of public use to ensure either one or both
projects qualify for tax-exenpt financing. That process nay
take up to six nonths; however, Coeur is hoping to start
construction later this sumer or early fall. The reason for

the timng of this legislation is to receive authorization if
due diligence falls in place so that the bonds can be issued.

MR TIM ARNOLD, V.P. and Ceneral WManager of Coeur Alaska Inc.,
representing Coeur d Alene Mnes Corporation, said he was
avai lable to answer questions about the Kensington Gold M ne
Proj ect.

CO CHAI R COADERY noted there were no further questions and asked
for the will of the conmttee.

SENATOR CEORG ANNA LINCOLN comented she had received SB 394
about 10 mnutes prior to the neeting, that the bill had just
been introduced on the 22nd of April, and she was hoping to have
nore of an opportunity to review the information. She said the
proposed Juneau access project has considered developing an
Al aska Marine H ghway ferry termnal in Berners Bay, and asked
if this project would be avail able for bonding through Al DEA.

4
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. MM LLAN responded that with tax-exenpt proceeds, AlDEA can
finance an exenpt facility such as a dock if it neets the two
requi renents of governnment ownership and the |ikelihood of
public use. He said because he wasn't famliar with the project
she was referring to, he was hesitant to answer directly other
than to outline those two criteria.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the fiscal note, “The bill provides
$20 mllion in bonding authorization” and asked if the $20
mllion bond would prevent other applicants with |arge projects
from appl yi ng.

MVR. McM LLAN said if this legislation passed, AIDEA is
authorized to issue up to $20 mllion in bonds for a port
devel opnment project on Lynn Canal. Assum ng that a sum |ess
than $20 mllion was needed for the two dock projects related to
Kensi ngton, then this authorization would allow AIDEA to utilize
the difference for another port developnment project on Lynn
Canal .

SENATOR DONNY OLSON asked about other reasons for developing a
port other than Kensington.

MR. MM LLAN responded, “W’'re not saying that there is or is
not another reason for developing it. W are | ooking at these
two projects, both the Cascade Point and the Slate Creek, for
supporting the Kensington Mne, but to do it by the issuance of
tax exenpt bonds, it has to be owned by the governnent, and it
al so has to be available for public use.”

SENATOR OLSON asked if the parent conpany would be charged for
the use of this port, after it’s been built.

MR MMLLAN replied this was correct. If the legislation
passes and bonds are issued, there will be sone type of user fee
that will re-pay the bond proceeds and generate a reasonable

return to Al DEA

SENATOR OLSON asked if a private person or tourist would pay a
fee to use the port.

MR. MM LLAN said there has been discussion of assessing a fee
for individual use.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR OLSON said he was hoping for nore of a yes or no answer
regardi ng whether there would be a charge for private as opposed
to commercial use.

MR. McMLLAN replied that he didn’'t have a specific answer right
now, but his perception is a fee won't be charged to individua
boaters tying up to the dock.

SENATOR COLSON reflected on current global unrest and the high
price of gold and said, “Let’s say that the price of gold drops
after the presidential election or after a senblance of peace
cones in the Mddle East. How do we make sure that this port
facility, or these two port facilities that are involved don’'t
turn into another seafood-plant-type project that’s there in
Anchorage, or Point Mickenzie farm situation, or even the Delta
Junction farm debacl es that we’ve seen happen in the past?”

MR. MM LLAN acknow edged that any project involves risk and

attenpts are nmade to mnmtigate that risk. There wll be
extensive due diligence, Coeur’s underwiters wll find a
pl acenment for the purchase of those bonds - either a private or
public offering — and underwiters in the market will determ ne

the structure and the required credit enhancenents to mtigate
the risk. AIDEA s agreenent for operation or repaynent of a fee
is supposed to be with Coeur Alaska Inc., which is a fully owned

subsidiary of Coeur d Alene M nes Corporation. An avail abl e
credit enhancenment would be the guarantee of the parent
cor poration. Through due diligence, if financial standing is

deened un-satisfactory, purchasers of the bond and AlIDEA would
look to other potential <credit enhancenments to assure the
project is successful.

SENATOR OLSON asked where Coeur d Alene Mning Corporation’s
parent offices were | ocated.

MR. ARNOLD responded that Coeur d’ Alene M nes Corporation was
| ocated in Coeur D Al ene, |daho. Coeur Alaska Inc. is |ocated
in Juneau.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT asked if public use of the Coeur
facility would be inmedi ate.

MR. MM LLAN responded that this requirement would need to be
satisfied at the outset. Hi s understanding is that it wouldn't
be necessary that the public use occur simultaneously with the
conpletion of the facility, but there would need to be assurance

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



that there is the likelihood of public use during the life of
t he project.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the tw port facilities fit under
the $20 million, or if surplus authorization mght be used for
sonme Coeur facility on the Lynn Canal; he asked for an estimated
cost of the two m ne-associ ated dock facilities.

MR. McM LLAN replied that as a conceptual design, according to
prelimnary discussions with the engineer, the projected cost
budget is approximately $10 nmillion. This is a very prelimnary
cost estimate, and probably additional geotechnical work is
necessary which could drive up the cost, and also the I RS code
allows for financing inprovenents that are ancillary and rel ated

to the primary project. “I't is too soon to indicate if there
are some other inprovenents that could be throwmm in this
package. If that is the case, we may get nmuch closer to the $20

mllion,” he said.
SENATOR COLSON asked if this was a hard rock m ne.
MR, ARNOLD said yes, it is underground hard rock

SENATOR OLSON asked how to ensure that difficulties wth
envi ronnmental concerns or objections that have been pointed out
wi thin the past week at Kensington will not be encountered

MR. ARNOLD said he wasn’t sure what Senator O son was referring
to, but noted that the EIS has been addressed, and currently, a
supplemental EIS; the comment period ended April 7. Coeur is
currently going through the permtting phase.

SENATOR OLSON said he was referring to a nmajor nmine project that
had all of the permts in order, but is now shut down because of
difficulties.

MR. ARNCOLD said there is always the opportunity for issues to
come up. Mning permts take years to get, so he honestly
couldn’t predict what woul d happen.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the port facility' s infrastructure
would be needed only if the mne was permtted; would this
infrastructure be built if the mne were not permtted?

MR. ARNOLD said the facilities would not be built unless there
was a go-ahead on the permtting processes.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. MMIlan if there would Dbe
restrictions that no infrastructure be built until the mne had
secured all necessary pernits.

MR. McMLLAN replied that because of the timng of the issues
and the desire to start construction this year, due diligence

will need to begin imediately; this neans an expenditure of
sone funds. At the next board neeting on My 7, a cost
rei nbursenent agreenment wll be presented to the board to be
executed wth Coeur d Alene M nes Corporation. If the project
goes forward, this allows advance funds for due diligence to be
part of the financing package. If it does not go forward, a
rei mbursenent agreenent, a pronmissory note, wll be repaid.
Al so, the bonds will not be issued and financing will not take

pl ace from AIDEA until the feasibility study is seen and permts
are issued, that is, until the project is ready to go.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if, w thout SB 394, Coeur would continue
wi th the m ning.

MR. ARNOLD sai d yes.
SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how this woul d be done w thout the port.

MR. ARNCLD questioned, “Wthout the port facility or wthout the
fi nanci ng?”

SENATOR LI NCOLN replied, “Wthout the port facility.”

MR. ARNCOLD said he m sspoke. Coeur would need sone sort of port
facility.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked, “Wiy don’t you just do that?”

MR. ARNOLD said that with the permts for the Kensington Mne in
the supplenental EIS, there are two options. The option of
using AIDEA to create the facility offers the advantage of the
bondi ng issue and the tax-exenpt financing. “This is a win-win
situation for both Coeur d Alene Mnes and the state of Al aska,
in our opinion. It helps us in one way. But at the end of the
day you end up with a port facility and it belongs to the state
of Al aska.” If Coeur d Alene Mnes creates the port wthout
using AIDEA financing, Alaska will not own the port and when
mning is finished, the port facility would be taken away.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how the requirenment for public use of the
port is envisioned.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. ARNOLD said it wasn't envisioned yet. That is sonething
that AIDEA and Coeur d’ Alene Mnes need to discuss. He noted
that the timng is unfortunate because the current |I|evel of
detail is not the final detail, and the [legislative] session
will end in a matter of weeks. The details will be available at
the end of May.

SENATOR LINCOLN said this bill had been introduced the 22nd of
this nmonth, and she assunmed Coeur approached the Legislature to
i ntroduce this.

MR.  ARNOLD responded he wasn’'t sure whether Coeur or Al DEA
approached the Legi sl ature.

SENATOR THERRI AULT told nenbers that AIDEA representatives had

cont act ed him and ot her | egi sl ators about t he port
infrastructure possibly going over the current statutory $10
mllion, and the need for increased authorization.

SENATOR LINCOLN said the project has been in the works for a
while and asked why on April 22nd it was determned that the
project mght go over $10 mllion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said this could be answered by Coeur or
Al DEA, but thought it had becone clearer as nunbers were firned

up.

MR. MMLLAN offered that while the project has been on the
drawing boards for quite a while, the nobst recent discussions
wi th Coeur regarding AIDEA s providing financial assistance has
only occurred during the past nonth and a half. “Coeur cane to
us and said they were ready. W |aid out potentials for them
and these two projects being potentials under devel opnent
fi nanci ng.” He acknow edged the timng as unfortunate, but to
nove forward under devel opnent finance, authorization from the
Legi slature is required.

SENATOR LINCOLN said the US Forest Service owns the |and on
whi ch nost of the mne will be situated, and their EIS won't be
conpleted until Septenber at the earliest. She asked if AlDEA
begins evaluating the project before the project is actually
permtted to proceed.

MR. McM LLAN said yes. The project begins immediately after the
May 7th board neeting, assumng the board authorizes entering
into a cost reinbursenent agreenent. Regar di ng Cascade Point,

9
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



sone if not all of the property on the south side of Berners Bay
was owned by GColdbelt Corporation. A lease will need to be
negotiated for the use of that property. He said he thought
Senator Lincoln was correct regarding the northern side. He
said he understood the EIS to be rendered in June unless it is
ext ended.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked M. Arnold if this loan would be going to
Coeur Al aska, Inc.

MR. ARNCLD deferred the question regarding the workings of
finances to Al DEA.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked about a guarantee by the parent conpany,
and whom the | oan woul d be going to.

MR. McMLLAN said it is proposed that the parent conpany, Coeur
d" Alene M nes Corporation, will issue a guarantee that there may
be additional mtigates of risk, or credit enhancenents.

CO CHAI R WAGONER asked for an expansion of the guarantee from
t he parent conpany, wondering if this was a letter of credit, or
what type of guarantee would need to be provided to AIDEA if
this project noves forward.

MR. McM LLAN said AIDEA normally goes into it knowing it wll be
an unsecured guarantee, neaning they will be standing behind the
paynent by Coeur, of the user fee, with all of the assets of
Coeur d’' Al ene M nes Corporation.

SENATOR LI NCOLN questioned if this was the normal |egislative
procedure, without going into the timng or the guarantee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT responded that M. MMIllan could say for
certain.

MR MMLLAN said that 1is correct. He said there are
simlarities with previous authorizations for other devel opnent
fi nance projects. There isn't nore detail because statute
merely requires authorization from the Legislature if bonds are
in excess of $10 million, and also because the statute sets
forth very specific requirenents before the financing can take
pl ace.

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked what Coeur d Alene Mnes Corporation’s
total assets were.

10
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR ARNOLD said he didn't know but could find out.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if $12 mllion was an estinmate for this
project, why was “not to exceed $20 mllion” specified?

MR. McM LLAN explained the project’s budget is not firmat this
poi nt and also the code allows financing for rel ated
i nprovenents. Al though the conceptual cost estinmate of the two

dock facilities is within the $10 million range it wll likely
be higher wth the final desi gn. If the $20 mllion
aut hori zation passes, AIDEA will only issue bonds up to the

requi red anmount to finance portions of the project that qualify.
The remaining amount could be used for other qualifying Coeur
devel opnment projects in Lynn Canal.

SENATOR LI NCOLN reviewed that Coeur was asking for $2.9 mllion
for the Cascade Point dock, $4.4 mllion for the Slate Creek
dock, which total $7.3 mllion; that leaves $12.7 mllion for
the upl ands. She asked if these figures were correct.

MR. ARNOLD said yes those were the prelimnary nunbers.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if the balance would be tied to this
project or if it could be used in another part of the state.

MR MM LLAN said the authorized amount |eft over could
potentially be used for the [indisc.] rural devel opnent project,
neeting the IRS requirenents, that is, “a port devel opnent
project on Lynn Canal” so if there was a feasible project and
i ssued bonds could be repaid, AIDEA would |ook at the project
and its location to see if it nmeets the intent of the origina
aut hori zati on. He said, “It’s a hard question to answer
specifically at this point. It wouldn’t necessarily have to be
related to this mne project.”

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if it was AIDEA' s |anguage to allow for
devel opment of other areas in Lynn Canal

MR. McM LLAN reported that once the determ nation was nade that
Coeur wanted to nove forward and |egislation was required, Al DEA
provi ded sanple |anguage to Coeur. This is the result of
di scussi ons between Coeur and AIDEA, attorneys at Legislative
Legal and AIDEA' s assistant to the attorney general.

CO CHAI R CONDERY announced that Representative Wyhrauch was at
the neeting and wanted to testify.

11
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH testified that Goldbelt, Inc.,
the Native Corporation that M. MMIlan referred to, is called
such because there is gold throughout this area. The Kensington
M ne has worked long and hard to develop that project, and it
woul d provi de t r emendous enpl oynment and di versification
opportunities for this locality. The city of Juneau has worked
with CGoldbelt, Inc. to develop |lands and opportunities. Thi s
project seenms to neet the exact statutory criteria in AS
44,.88.095, as the project is economcally advantageous to the
state and the general public welfare and will contribute to the
state’s econom c grow h.

REPRESENATI VE  WEYHRAUCH continued that Senator O son had
menti oned potential inpacts to the Pogo Mne and the drop in
gold prices. The state has relied on mning opportunities to
devel op the econony. The project applicant is financially
responsi bl e, has devel oped huge m ning operations throughout the
world, and is the likely candidate to support AIDEA in issuing
t hese bonds. Wrk has been done with the Southeast Al aska
gillnet fleet to address water quality and fishing issues in the
ar ea. The other statutory requirenment is to provide and retain
enpl oynment related to the anount financed by the authority in
consideration of the anmount of investnment per enployee for
conparable facilities and other related relevant factors. The
Red Dog M ne Dock and the Federal Express termi nal in Anchorage
seemto fall wthin that criterion

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said this neets the enploynent,
resource devel opnent, and public use need for this type of
facility. It would be rare for boats to use this dock because
there are dock facilities in Skagway and Haines just north of
the facility and in Auke Bay just south of the facility.

However, in nost cases in Alaska, if a mariner needs a dock for
energency purposes, this would be readily available. I n
addition, beyond the life of this project, there will be access
to public lands in that area for hunting, fishing, hiking,
canping, and so forth. Beyond the intended purposes of the

dock, this provides a valuable public resource for people, sone
of whom may be opposed to the mne. He expressed his support on
behalf of a community that needs this resource devel opnent and
opportunity for diversification.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. MMIllan if there was currently
statutory authority to put together projects of wup to $10
mllion.

12
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR MMLLAN said if the project 1is financed under the
devel opment finance program this would apply if the facility
was owned. He clarified that the proposed financing structure
of the two docks was a hybrid of two of the prograns.

TAPE 04-19, SIDE B

MR. MM LLAN continued that issuing general obligation bonds
means AIDEA was at risk for repaynment of those bonds if there
was a default. That has been subsequently corrected in a future
refundi ng. Another exanple of a simlar project is the sale of
Snettisham Al DEA owned the facility but the type of financing
was a conduit bond as indicated in the fiscal note. Under a
conduit bond, the assets, credit [indisc.] or authority are not
at risk, and that’s what is being proposed here. Al DEA’ s
ownership is [indisc.] classified as non-ownership in order to
give lower-cost financing issuance of tax-exenpt bonds. Al DEA
will have title to the facility but will not be at risk for
repaynment of bonds that wll be issued. That al so speaks to
Senator O son’'s earlier concern about future risk. He thought
due diligence would be nore extensive on the part of people or
entities who buy these bonds.

SENATOR WAGONER said he’s had inherent distrust of Al DEA He
then asked what facilities are being talked about in SB 394
ot her than the construction of ports.

2:30 p.m

MR MMLLAN replied that no related facilities have yet been
identified. Because of the timng and prelimnary discussions,
AIDEA wanted to allow for related facilities such as fue
storage, for exanple.

SENATOR LI NCOLN referred to the $12.7 mllion and asked if Al DEA
could resolve an anpbunt, up to the $20 mllion cap, that Coeur
is wlling to bond for regarding related facilities on Lynn
Canal .

MR MMLLAN said this was probably correct but thinks it
requires a separate bond issue which would double the issuance
cost. If the project were clearly going to be wunder $10
mllion, then I|egislative authorization would not be required.
They really don’t know yet about the issues of prelimnary costs
and capital inprovenents, and would like to include it under one
i ssuance to mnimze issuance costs.

13
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR WAGONER said he would like to know the value of Coeur
d” Alene’s assets before voting on SB 394. He repeated that he
has an inherent distrust of AIDEA that he's seen the AS|
building in Anchorage that will cost the state several mllion
dollars, and he doesn’'t want the state to get into another
simlar situation wth Al DEA

MR. ARNCLD told conmmttee nenbers he had just been inforned that
the parent conpany’s assets are currently $258 mllion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to report SB 394 and the acconpanying
fiscal notes to the Senate Finance commttee for review, wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

SENATOR LI NCOLN objected and spoke to her objection. She said
even though she was able to ask questions during the neeting,

she was uneasy about not knowing how all the pieces will fall
t oget her. Her questions were financial in nature and she would
relate those question to nenbers in Finance. Wth that, she

wi t hdrew her obj ection.

CO CHAI R CONDERY acknowl edged there were no further objections
and announced the bill was so noved.
2:40 p.m

SCR 25- STATE CONSTRUCTI ON/ MAI NTENANCE CONTRACTS

The conmittee took up SCR 25.

CO CHAI R CONDERY, sponsor of SCR 25, said SCR 25 was his effort
to address problens due to SB 40, and testified as follows:

In order to maintain transparency and to nmake certain
public funds are spent efficiently, statute requires
construction and mai ntenance contracts be awarded on
the basis of a conpetitive bid.

In the case of small projects or repairs, law allows
the state, for the purpose of efficiency, to fund a
project in-house through what’'s termed a ‘force
account .’ |deally, these are for projects costing
$250, 000 or |ess.

The purpose of SCR 25 is to encourage the State of
Al aska (primarily DOT&PF) to use day |abor, 24-hour
call out contracts, conpetitively bid, in the range of
$250, 000 to $1,500, 000. Contractors enploy skilled
managers and nmintain an inventory of specialized

14
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



equi pnent . Therefore, construction work done in the

public sector requires simlar staffing as well as
inventory, thus resulting in increased cost to the
rat epayer.

Day |abor <contracts on 24-hour call would be al

enconpassi ng, using the conpetitive bid process to set
line item costs for a set of numerous individual

tasks, such as replacing a road sign to filling a
pothole to grading a gravel runway, and in sone places
in rural Al aska, boardwal ks. Contractors on 24-hour

call would use pretty much | ocal |abor sources.

CO- CHAIR COWNDERY questioned if force accounts ever wuse a
conpetitive bid project if they run into problens that they
don’t have the noney for, and use force accounts to finish the
proj ect.

MR. MARK O BRI EN, Chief Contracts Oficer for DOT&PF, said yes.
In a case where there is an ongoing construction project and
they run into an unknown repair, it is fairly typical to use a
force account to conduct work that was not previously called
for, under the lowbid conpetitive bid that was put out and
awar ded under the contract. That needs to be accounted for in a
di fferent manner.

CO CHAIR CONDERY asked if the force account was used, in the
original conception of force accounts for the purpose just
referred to.

MR OBRIEN replied this was probably the nost conmon use for
force account within the departnent; to pick up and address
these issues that were not within the scope of the original hard
noney bid that was put out and awarded. There are other uses
for it too.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if the estimated savings on cal endar year
2002 force account projects, between $250,000 and $1.5 million
was $905, 000, or 38 percent.

MR. O BRIEN confirmed this was correct.
CO CHAIR CONDERY said assumng the anount of force account
projects remains constant, over the next six years the |ost

savings would total $5.43 mllion.

MR. OBRIEN said this was correct.

15
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



CO-CHAIR CONDERY asked if this referred to contracts that were
conpetitively bid by engineers’ estinates.

MR OBRIEN said these were estimted savings based on the
difference between issuing a conpetitive sealed bid and using
i n-house force account |abor to acconplish the work. Savi ngs
are primarily the result of the differential between Davis Bacon
wages and the wages paid by the state, a profit that contractors
receive that the state does not charge on a project. Cheaper
materials are a result of stockpiling nmaterials in advance of
the project, and a nunber of factors determne that for a
particular project it was ‘x’ percent |ess expensive to do it
with a force account. The representative nunber is an
accurul ati on and aver age.

CO CHAIR CONDERY said these were never bid out conpetitively.
He asked if this was an estimate of what it would be if it went
on the street.

MR. O BRIEN said that was correct.

CO CHAI R CONDERY, suggesting that estimates are guesswork, asked
if engineers’ estinates were always accurate.

MR OBRIEN said no, occasionally engineers’ estimtes are
considerably off fromthe price that conmes in fromcontractors.

CO CHAI R CONDERY said he has bid on jobs where it was as high as
50 percent. For exanple, bidding on the Port of Anchorage, he
cane in very |low because of “having a better nousetrap or
whatever.” They did the job but it was about fifty percent |ess
than the engineer’s estinmate. He said his point was that
there’s no way to be accurate until you have a conpetitive bid.
He referred to the St. Mary' s project, and nentioned that | oca
residents were state enployees. He said whether one lives in
rural or urban Alaska, the labor force should be paid the sane
since people work just as hard to finish the project. The wage
scale should be on a par with the urban wage scale. Thi s
resolution assures that it’s conpetitively bid, that Davis Bacon
wages are followed, and so forth. He said he doesn’'t agree with
the fiscal note showi ng a savings because it’s all specul ation.

MR OBRIEN said that sonme projects are based on conpetitive

bi d. For instance, in a year when they did resurfacing in a

particular area with a contractor, they knew what those costs

wer e. If they do a force account project on a simlar stretch
16

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



of road, they have accunulated both of those costs to verify
that in fact the estimate for savings was verified through
actual bid results.

CO CHAI R CONDERY said he didn't understand if a job was put out
to bid, the contractor went to the cost of bidding it but then
it went to the force account. Until one actually does
sonething, all one has 1is an educated guess which isn’t
accurate, he said.

MR OBREN said he neant that if there are two separate
projects, one acconplished by a contractor under low bid, and
one acconplished by the state under force account, and track the
cost for both of those projects, it verifies a cost-savings for
the state to use force account for the re-surface job that he
referred to earlier. He clarified that it wasn't that they did
the project and then told the contractor that they were going to
do it with their own forces, but rather that it was a conparison
of two simlar projects, one acconplished with a contractor and
one with state forces.

CO CHAI R CONDERY said, “Granted, the state has equi pnent, but do
they pay taxes |ike the contractor does? Have overhead?” He
said with the St. Miry's project, two contractors spent tine
bi ddi ng on the job and then the bids were cancell ed.

MR O BRIEN said the departnment did not actually conpetitively
bid the St. Mary’s project.

CO-CHAIR CONDERY nentioned that contractors went there to see
t he j ob.

MR. O BRI EN responded that may be correct.

SENATOR COLSON acknow edged that the force account system has
done a wonderful job in rural Alaska for sonme DOT&PF projects

He said a nunber of the airports done under force account have
been a positive factor for those involved with the project. He
mentioned the project in Elim in particular where the village
and the city were involved, and the project was done under
budget . After the project was conpleted, people took pride in
it. He said the force account system has been working well in
the past, and asked for the departnent’s opinion of the
resol ution.

MR. O BRIEN said sone concerns about the resolution have been
formul ated. The resolution intends to encourage the use of as-

17
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



needed contracts, which are comonly referred to as term
contracts where one doesn’t have a specific piece of work but
has a contractor on board to take on whatever next piece of work

cones al ong. He said the departnent currently uses term
contracts for various pieces of work, but is usually restricted
to individual tasks or individual contracts. He said there
should be a list of exanples of termcontracts the departnent
currently uses, provided in the packet. He gave the exanpl es of
construction inspection, corrosion inspection, cost estimting,
and materials testing. Those are exanples of *“as-needed”

contracts that are kept on the mai ntenance and operation side.

MR. FRANK RI CHARDS, State Mai ntenance Engi neer for Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF), said that

included in the commttee packet is an extensive list of
contracts currently under naintenance, including specialty work
such as brush-cutting, guard rail repl acenent, electrica
repair, and the largest one likely being the snow haul in
Anchorage. |It’s an as-needed, on-call basis for contract repair
to renove the snow. One of the other large efforts is the rura
hi ghways and airport contracts. There are about 170 contracts

essentially on an as-needed basis, primarily to renove the snow
on the runways and roads in rural Al aska. Those are worth about
$2 mllion per year, which is a fairly |arge nunber.

SENATOR OLSON said he was tal king about new capital projects as
opposed to mai ntenance and operations projects.

MR. O BRIEN responded that this ties in to the construction
contracts because statute and regulations require all of the
construction contracts, absent those approved by force account,
to be done by conpetitive sealed bid, to the |owest responsive
and responsi bl e bidder. That is different than the way this
tool sets that up. | f these as-needed contracts were inposed,
there is no project for the contractor to bid on when he is
responding to the as-needed contract. H's only option is to bid
hourly rates, equipnent costs, and those kinds of figures so
they are sitting there when the departnent is ready to turn on a

proj ect. In this case, if an as-needed contract were used, the
departnment would not have a contract low bid price for this work
going in; it wuld be time and materials. Rarely has the
departnment seen a low bid cone in that is going to be nore
expensive than the tinme and materials contract. Locki ng the
contractor in from day one for the specific construction project
is the main concern. If the departnent used this vehicle to use

a contractor who was not locked in, it may result in additiona
costs to the state. That’'s the primary concern, he said.

18
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



CO- CHAIR CONDERY said once when he worked for the mayor of
Anchorage, the sane problem arose and he devel oped a day | abor
contract. Everybody who bid on it, including ABC, liked it. He
said he thought that in years past, he had given contract copies
of that to DOT&PF. It was put out simlar to a job to build a
road from Juneau to Skagway, that is, anticipating everything
that’s needed, whether that be guard rails, signage, glass

culvert, or asphalt per ton per mle. It started out at $.5
mllion dollars wth the city of Anchorage and went to a
mllion; it was very conpetitively bid, and it was understood
that “itenms that you bid may not ever occur. But everybody

being on the up and up, the size of the contract was determ ned
by sonmeone to be a fair expectation of the anobunt of work that
was going to be done in that year. In other words, it wouldn't
be said that it would be $10 million and then do $10.”

2:58 p.m

COCHAIR WAGONER referred to M. OBrien's coment about
different salaries the state pays versus Davis Bacon wages,
saying he doesn’t think one could stick to those paraneters when
figuring the cost of jobs because he has observed that between
Kenai and Anchorage, a lot of guard rail is |lost every year. He
said he had the chance to observe private contractors worKking
with two to three people, whereas the highway departnent woul d
have a much | arger crew doing that type of work. He said it was
really difficult to estinmate the actual cost unless it was bid
out, and then one takes that bid and relates it to the state and
| ooks at the increase in the amount of hours. He said he wasn’'t
saying which was right or wong, but intangibles were involved
regarding figuring prices and jobs.

COCHAIR WAGONER remarked that this is a good bill. He
referenced 1996 when he was running for office and going back
and forth between Kenai and Anchorage every day. The state was
doing a large seal coat job on the highway, there was continuous

traffic and it was all state equipnent, state workers. He
didn’t know how many mllions of dollars the job was worth, but
it must not have been a job that was bid out. He said he would

much rather see state enployees working in nmaintenance-type
efforts to keep the good quality of the roads up than seeing
them working wth equipnment that costs several hundreds of
t housands of dollars, doing construction work. He said this was
a maj or construction project that he doesn’'t think was ever bid,
al though the private sector is there to do the work, and has the
equi pnent . He questioned whether the state should have that

19
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



type of equi pnent, because “that’s a |lot of noney sitting around
in inventory” although he understands in the winter there is
sone use for sanding and other functions.

CO CHAI R COANDERY questioned whether the state could do those
jobs for |ess.

SENATOR COLSON said he wanted to distinguish between the force
account projects on the road system and those not on the road
system He said he was nore famliar with the one outside of

the Railbelt, or road system in Al aska. He said he knows the
state has leased a lot of equipnent and it has cut the price
down. This was true for the St. Mary's and the Elim project.

There has been an addition to the community as opposed to a
project that goes on in the comunity, when everybody conmes and

then | eaves, including a majority of the |abor capital. He said
from a business perspective, he has concerns regardi ng equi pnent
being purchased or depreciating, and yet, in looking at the

whol e picture, he sees the positive effects of force accounts
where it has been unfettered by the nunbers or the size of the
project, especially in construction. From a public policy
standpoint, he said DOT&PF s force account system seens to be a
positive factor, despite some of the negative sentinments being
voi ced. He reiterated that there should be a distinction
bet ween road and not-on-the-road force account projects.

CO CHAIR COWNDERY asked if the marine highway was on the road
system

SENATOR OLSON said this wasn’'t black or white, but a grey area.
He said sonebody representing the Mrine H ghway System shoul d
conment .

CO CHAIR CONDERY comrented that the purpose of SCR 25 on SB 40
woul d be to give sone latitude to the |ocal people. Having been
a contractor involved with mking noney, he said whenever he
could, he hired |ocal people. The local people were anxious to
work, were good, creative workers, and he paid Davis Bacon
wages.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she didn’t find that SCR 25 would help the
vill ages, as Co-Chair Cowdery was suggesting. She said she has
sone m sunderstanding of the “as needed” contractors and asked,
“In the force account projects that you ve had in the villages,
how much in 2003 would have been provided to force account to
villages versus conpetitive bidding throughout Al aska, or even
conpetitive bidding in the villages?”

20
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. O BRIEN said he didn’t have those nunbers with himtoday.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked, regarding force account, if he could give
a percentage, such as 50 or 80 percent of the projects in
Al aska.

MR OBRIEN said no, in terns of the total highway [indisc.]
force accounts, for instance, in 2002, force account represented
2.23 percent of the departnent’s funding.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked, of that 2.23 percent, were those all in
rural, bush comunities?

MR O BRIEN said no they weren't. They reflect two different
prograns — maintenance and operation prograns that Senator
Wagoner discussed - with road crews doing jobs in an area. It
woul d al so include projects such as King Cove or Sol dotna, where
there were individual force account projects in those
comunities. He said it’s a mxture of both and he didn't have
a breakdown for where those percentages were.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if 97.75 percent of all the projects were
done through conpetitive bidding.

MR O BRIEN said this was correct.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked for an explanation of why 97.75 percent of
all the projects in 2002 - and she expressed interest in 2003 -
was a concern, when force accounting is 2.23 percent.

CO CHAI R COANDERY asked what the largest contract was in 2002
that is, “Wuat’'s the dollar value of the largest and the
smal | est ?”

MR. O BRIEN asked if the question was the |argest dollar anount
of a force account project.

CO CHAIR COWDERY said no, of a project. He reviewed that in
2002, 2.23 percent was in force account, of all the projects.
He asked what the high bid was on whatever projects that “you
made in to this equation,” what the |low bid was, and where they
were | ocat ed?

MR. O BRIEN answered that the program for 2002 would have been
roughly a $550 million total program of which the force account

21
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



approvals represented $11, 242,000, reflected in the 2.23
percent .

CO CHAIR COWNDERY asked about there being hydrocarbons in the
road, and whether the force account would be used to add to the
cost of the project, or if the project would be stopped and
there woul d be new fundi ng.

MR OBRIEN responded that was a different kind of force
account. A force account that occurs on a construction project
is not a force account that requires approval by statute because
the original contract was conpetitively bid. The depart nent
had a project that required that kind of a force account with a
contractor, it’s not found in these nunbers and it’s not
required for statutory approval. Statutory approval is required
when the departnment conducts a force account wth its own
enpl oyees and does it from the very beginning, so there is no
conpetitive bid for the work itself.

SENATOR LINCOLN stated that force accounting is so critical to

many small comunities. She nentioned the village of Ranpart,
where none of the enployees were local hires in a conpetitive
bi d. Men and wonen watched the project, alnost wth tears in
their eyes. She concurs with Senator O son’s coments about

pride in projects done by local hire versus projects where there
is no idea how it was put together. She then asked for a review
of the handouts that were included in the comm ttee packet.

MR OBRIEN referred to and explained the three handouts, noting
that the department currently utilizes as-needed contracts. The
difference between those contracts and the contract for a
construction bid is what is comonly called, a “hard dollar
bid.” An as-needed contract, for the purposes of a construction
project, is not a hard dollar bid. There is no anount. The
anount conmes along after the contract is in place wwth the term
contractor. He gave the exanple of winning a term contract in
Anchorage, which entitles one to do various repairs on the road
surface. DOT&PF has a $1.5 nmillion project involving changes at
an intersection. That contract is already acquired, before the
project conmes along, so he is paid according to his rates, not
on a hard dollar bid. The state doesn’t have a bid for the $1.3
mllion for that job, but has the hourly rate, cost for the
equi pnent, overhead profit; it is not a hard dollar bid. That
is primarily the difference between the list of contracts and
how the departnment normally contracts for the conpetitive awards
for construction projects.

22
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR LI NCOLN acknowl edged that it was probably difficult for
M. OBrien to sit in the hot seat and speak honestly about what
the effects of this resolution mght be, and a reflection on SB
40 as well. She asked if he was representing the departnent,
t he adm ni stration.

MR. O BRIEN said that was correct.

MR. RICHARDS responded to Senator Lincoln's question and
referred to the three |ists. One was a list of contracts that
M. OBrien nentioned and the second was an identification of
projects that would not be conpleted, based on certain dollar
value limtations. The third was the fiscal note. He addressed
DOT&PF' s force account efforts that Co-Chair Wagoner referenced,
and said the benefit of wutilizing federal funds for preventive
mai nt enance type work is it allows for a continuity of work
force. The general fund dollars currently used for operating
budgets aren’'t sufficient to keep folks enployed year round;
there would be seasonal lay-offs in the sunmmertine to relieve

the workforce of those |abor costs. The second benefit is of
the equi pnent costs. Wen the departnent is able to utilize
snowpl ows, tractors, |oaders, and sweepers for preventive

mai nt enance contracts, there is an ability to charge that
equi pnent cost onto the federal project.

TAPE 04-20, SIDE A

MR. RICHARDS continued that the preventive nmaintenance prograns
t hat have been put into place have been beneficial in preserving
the life of the assets that the departnent is constructing, by
utilizing federal highway and aviation dollars. 1t’'s not always
the best practice to have to reconstruct, once a pavenent has
failed, and if preventive neasures can be done up front during
the life of that pavenent, there will be a cost savings overal
to state and federal prograns.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if there have been any nmajor problens with
force accounting.

MR OBREN said he has been wth the departnent in this
capacity since 1998, and is responsible for proving all of the
force account projects; he was not aware of any significant
pr obl ens.

CO- CHAIR CONDERY said this is not about force accounts. He
asked, without SB 40, what is the limt regarding sonebody who
had a finding saying this is in the best interest of the state.

23
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. O BRIEN responded the requirenent is for cost effectiveness
of finding on the individual project and there is no limt on
the size of the [project].

CO CHAIR CONDERY said the purpose of this resolution is to help
out rural Al aska, and it addresses SB 40.

SENATOR LINCOLN read from the |ast paragraph of SCR 25 as

fol |l ows:
Be it resolved that the Al aska State Legislature
respectfully requests that the governor consider
directing the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities and other state agencies to use, when
handl i ng construction and mnai ntenance projects between
approxi mately $250,000 and $1,500,000 throughout the
stat e, an approach under which a conpetitively
sel ected contractor agrees to provide construction and
mai nt enance services on an as-needed basis over a
particular period of time to a specific geographical
area and on a 24-hour response basis.

She asked what this does to force accounting.

MR OBRIEN replied that it is difficult to answer that question
because “be it resolved” is not binding on the departnent. It
requests that the governor consider it. It is difficult to know
if the admnistration would go forward wth that request.
Assuming they did, projects that fall within that category for
all state agencies, not just DOI&F, would be required to use
this approach whereby contractors are identified up-front. It’s
difficult to say for «certain what this would do. The
departnment’s concern is since these are not hard-dollar bids,
not conpetitive, there could be an increase in the overall cost
to the state for those sanme groups of projects. That’s the
primary concern

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if the force accounting would continue as
is, under that resolve.

MR OBRIEN said projects in excess of $1.5 mllion would
continue under the normal force account process unless the |aw
changes as a result of SB 40, in which case it wuld be
restricted to $250,000. The departnment would be prohibited from
doi ng any project in excess of $250,000 by force account.

24
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR WAGONER noved to report SCR 25 out of committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal note.

SENATOR LI NCOLN obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators Therriault, Wgoner, and
Cowdery voted in favor of the notion; Senators Lincoln and Q son
voted against it. Therefore, SCR 25 noved from the Senate
Transportation Standing Conmttee by a vote of 3 to 2.

SB 391- DALTON HI GHWAY TRAPLI NE ACCESS

The comm ttee took up SB 391.

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS, sponsor of SB 391, explained this bill

will allow trappers to use snow machines within the five mle
corridor of the Dalton H ghway to access traplines. Currently,
Al aska statutes ban, with limted exceptions, use of off-road

vehicles within five mles of the highway, starting at mle 57,
at the Yukon River Crossing, and extending 357 mles north to
the Arctic Coast. The state has not actively enforced this
statutory ban, nevertheless, this has not stopped the federal
government from co-opting the state law, and |l et BLM cl ose | ong-
existing traplines and threatening to tear down, or has torn
down cabins, unless trappers resort to non-notorized access.
This bill seeks to renedy that situation by allowing the limted
use of snow machines within the corridor for the express purpose
of establishing, maintaining, and servicing a trapline |ocated
outside the corridor. To the extent that trapping is a seasonal
activity, each trapline needs to be re-established annually. He
said his intent was to provide a neasure of relief to trappers
who have already been operating in the area. Some of these
traplines are as nmuch as 275 mles long and the only feasible
access is by snow machine in the wintertine.

SENATOR SEEKINS pointed out this was an interim step,
specifically designed with the intent of allowing people wth
al ready established traplines to be able to continue to trap in
the face of a federal threat to close them down. He said, “I
think that’s fair and just. There’s no harm that’s been shown
by people operating in the past. There's no good reason for the
federal governnent to shut themdown ... it’s state |law that the
federal governnent is quoting when they say they're going to
shut these fol ks down. Even though Al aska’s DPS and none of our
ot her departnents are doing anything to enforce this statute
agai nst these people at this tine.”

25
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR LINCOLN said she didn't believe and didn't think the
sponsor intended to say there were cabins that were burnt down
or destroyed because she understands that no cabins have been
destroyed or noved. Regardi ng the individual who purported to
have 225 mles of trapline - the |local people in the area stated
this individual doesn’t have 225 mles of trapline. He has gone
off the road in two areas, but is a pilot car driver, and does
not drive (she referred to a letter) the 225 mles by snow
machi ne.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if anybody has a 225-mle trapline.

SENATOR LINCOLN said the individual being referred to that was
reported to have a 225-nmile trapline, but in fact, trappers have
said this was not the case. She said she has contacted Al yeska.
There is concern for pipeline safety; that’s why the five mle
corridor existed. She said she has not heard from Al yeska
regarding the inplications, should this bill go through. She
said she was out of the loop and perhaps the sponsor could
explain about the bill the sponsor is working on with Senator
a son. She questioned why, instead of anendi ng that
| egislation, there is this new bill.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he has no information to refute the fact
that BLM has told people who are trappers that they have to
renmove the cabins they are using that are outside of that five-
mle corridor. He said, “l’ve seen an official letter to a
trapper that says you cannot access, if this decision cones
down, and you will be forced to renobve the cabins that are out
there.” If those are accessed with sonething other than a snow
machine, it would not fit into the restriction being proposed.
He explained he was still working wth Senator O son on anot her
bill, and that this bill elimnates any confusion about his
intent; it has been introduced for this specific purpose. If it
was norphed or |lengthened to any extent, he said he would
W thdraw it. “I want to nake clear to everyone that this is a
specific purpose for people who have been legally operating
their traplines but illegally accessing it according to state
law to be able to do so.” Senat or Seekins said he remains
working with Senator A son to ensure that if an agreenent can be
reached addressing how to protect these people, that wll be
done, and then this bill will die.

SENATOR WAGONER said he was trying to relate snow machi nes goi ng
|l egally from one side to the other side, and from the road just

to one side. He asked if Senator Seekins and Senator d son
wor ked out another bill, that would di sappear.
26

SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR SEEKI NS said it woul d di sappear.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if this would then be taken care of in the
other bill.

SENATOR SEEKINS said simlar |anguage was being worked on that

would do exactly this, down the Iine. Senator A son has a
different constituency than he does, and they need to fee

confortable. That bill was expanded in the past, and he said
he’s agreed to restrict it down. This bill is nmeant to give

confort to other people.
SENATOR OLSON asked if there was a sunset date in this bill

SENATOR SEEKINS said he didn't know. He said he didn't think
there was a sunset on the other one. He said people who are
doing this now would be allowed to continue, just |ike the
people currently mning have the right to access, and the oil
and gas industry has the right to go out and explore or
mai nt ai n. There is access available, and the intent is to
perpetuate |legal usage. This is intended to protect only those
people who are already engaged, not to allow any increase in
trappers or to encourage a proliferation of trappers. In the
next session, the intention is to address other access
provisions after there is tinme to study it.

SENATOR OLSON asked how many trappers were involved with this.

SENATOR SEEKINS said it was his understanding that there are
| ess than 10.

SENATOR COLSON asked when the trapping season takes place, and
how many nonths out of the year was this expected to be an
I ssue.

SENATOR SEEKI NS responded, only when there was sufficient snow
cover to get out there. He thinks the trapping season is during
the coldest few nonths of the year; nost of the traps are shut
down now.

SENATOR OLSON asked if people were trapping by using four-
wheel ers.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied no, not to his know edge. He added that
this was strictly for snow machi nes.

27
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR LINCOLN read [page 1, line 13] as follows: “the use of
a snow nmachine to travel across the highway corridor from |and
outside the corridor to access |land outside the other side of
the corridor or the use of a snow machine to travel from wthin,

or into, the corridor for the purpose of establishing,
mai ntaining, or servicing a trapline located outside of the
corridor.” She said a trap license is $15, and this doesn't

address existing traplines, but says it can be used to service a
trapline. So, with a $15 license, one could throw a couple of
traps on a snow nmachine and go trapping; it doesn’t prohibit the
use of that corridor to the 10 people, but opens it to anybody
who throws traps on their snow nachine. She rem nded the
sponsor that while the concerns are in one part of the corridor,
that corridor affects a nunber of villages as well.

SENATOR SEEKINS said a resident trapping license is $15,
al t hough he buys his as part of a regular hunting, fishing, and
trapping license. He said the safety issue was bogus, as people
drive up and down that road all day long; a terrorist is not
going to drive with a snow machine on the back of the truck,
take the snow machine off, and then drive 15 yards off the road
to get to the pipeline to destroy it. Peopl e from outside the
corridor, as Senator Wagoner indicated, can drive from one side
to the other with no problem at all and evidently this is not a
safety risk. He repeated, for the record, that the intent is to
protect people who already have traplines there. He enphasi zed
that until this issue is settled, we don't want the federal
government to enforce our |aw agai nst our residents.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how this was tied to an established
trapline.

SENATOR SEEKINS said a trapline could be established now, but it
has to be re-established in the next trapping season, so the
word “established” is a |little confusing. In one sense,
established trappers have been trapping there for a period of
time, but that trapline expires and needs to be re-established
t he next year.

MR MATT ROBUS, Director of WIdlife Conservation, Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane (ADF&G said he was available to
answer questions.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how soneone establishes a trapline.

28
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. ROBUS responded establishnment of a trapline is the physica
act of cutting the trail, but there is no |egal precedence as
there is in other jurisdictions.

CO CHAI R CONDERY said he honesteaded in 1952 and asked if there
were any grandfather rights, wondering if one could start at the
sanme | ocation today and do the sane thing.

MR ROBUS said this was correct and if another trapper had

established and traditionally run a trapline since then, it
would basically involve negotiating wth the trapper and
hopefully comng to a friendly agreenent. There are no rights

to be grandfathered in, nor does the other trapper have
excl usionary rights.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the individual with the 225-mle
trapline; entrapping on an established line is a taboo, as is
| eaving no wood at a renote cabin. The individual went to BLM
and BLM told himto find his own area. He went up to another
ar ea. So there is sort of a gentlenen' s agreenent. She
expressed concern that with this |egislation, sonmeone could just
throw a trap on their snow machine, with a permt, and go in
there, even if this is not the sponsor’s intent.

MR ROBUS said yes, the way the bill is witten, there is
opportunity for an additional trapper to go in there. Hi s
testinmony on the First Haul Road bill, SB 298, was to the extent

there is a rise in the nunber of people going through the
corridor on snow machines as a result of the SB 391, ADF&G and
the Board of Ganme have nanagenent tools to ensure the inpacts to

the populations of animals are controlled. ADF&G has the
ability to deal wth nmanagenent issues, energency orders, and
board regulations for different bag limts and seasons and so
forth.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked, if sonebody said, “I’m going trapping,”

how this would be nmanaged, as that person couldn’t be cited for
doi ng anyt hi ng wr ong.

MR, ROBUS said ADF&G wasn't the enforcenent agency. He was
referring to nmanagenent regarding an increase of hunting
pressure on caribou or npose due to nore people going through
the corridor. ADF&G could adjust bag limts, seasons, or issue
energency closures to protect the resource. Regar di ng
enforcenent, Senator Lincoln was correct in that if sonebody was
going to run a trapline, and they have a snow nmachine, you'd
basically have to take themat their word or investigate.

29
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR OLSON asked for clarification of M. Robus’s position.

MR. ROBUS said he was involved with ADF&G wi |l dlife managenent;
enforcenment is with the state troopers.

SENATOR OLSON asked what types of aninmals are being trapped.

MR. ROBUS said the Haul Road crosses many different habitats and
i ncludes wolves, nmarten, wolverine, fox, Ilynx, and a wde
vari ety of fur-bearing animls.

SENATOR COLSON asked if the departnent has a position on the
bill.

MR. ROBUS said he didn't think so.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if it was correct that anybody w shing to
buy a license can trap in any given area and that basically the
departnent does not regulate where they trap or how many furs
are produced per year.

MR. ROBUS responded this was basically correct, but wanted to
put sone sideboards on this. He said if it got to a point where
indications were such that populations were suffering from
pressure, ADF&G woul d shorten seasons or even close those areas.
The Board of Ganme has a few trapping closures where it’s not
appropriate for trappers to go. QO her than that, trapping is
basically self-regulating. Trappers have to sort out anongst
t henmsel ves where they're going to operate in order to nmake it
worthwhile to go trapping fromyear to year.

SENATOR COLSON asked if besides this bill, there is another way
to keep these trapping cabins from being torn or burned down to
ensure that these sanctuaries of safety would be available, in
addition to being used by the people who put them up and who
have a financial investnent in them

MR. ROBUS said he wasn’t equi pped to answer that since state |aw
doesn’t have a penalty clause and it has never been enforced
The state law is not the proximte problem and he doesn’'t know
much about BLMregul ations or recent actions.

SENATOR COLSON said state law may not be in question, but the
sponsor is stating that the federal [governnent] is using state
| aw as a justification.

30
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



MR. ROBUS confirnmed he’s heard the sane statenent in several
heari ngs and gathers that state statute is allowing BLM to nake
attenpts at enforcenent.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to a gentleman in her district who
noted there are two real established trappers in this |arge

area, saying, “lI was not opposed to access pernmts to areas that
do not conflict with established traplines for these two real
trappers.” She said there is expressed concern with people

ot her than these trappers. She asked why the five-mle corridor
was est abl i shed.

MR, ROBUS said it was to protect the pipeline itself and there
may have been intent to protect wldlife populations along the
Haul Road.

[ Co-Chair Cowdery |eft the room and the gavel was turned over to
Co- Chai r Wagoner. ]

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked Senator Seekins if he intended to anend
this, acknow edging that his intent was for SB 391 to apply to
t hose who were already established trappers.

SENATOR SEEKI NS responded, “Go ahead and propose the anmendnent.”

SENATOR LINCOLN suggested conceptually, ”"That a trapper nust
have received a BLM permt for snowrobile access in the past 24
nonths to access their — or — this trapline.”

4:00 p.m

SENATOR SEEKINS said he’d just as soon |eave BLM out. | f
soneone can show they’ve trapped there, they should have access;
to the best of his know edge, based on talking with people from
the Trappers’ Association, this anmounts to |less than 10 people.
He said only the BLMis enforcing the restriction and he wanted
to protect people actually trapping there now because they' re
not causing any huge disruption. Conceptual ly, he said, “Those
peopl e who can show that they have trapped there, you know in
the last 24 nonths, sonmething like that, that adequately neets
ny intent. But we’ve had troubles struggling with this, wth
the drafters, as well, to nmake sure that we're taking care of
those fol ks who have been doing this from this federal threat,
Wi t hout opening it up to sonebody who says, ‘I’ve got two traps
in the back of nmy snow machine and |’m going out there.’” That’s
not our intent, and | think you know that.”

31
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



COCHAIR WAGONER asked if this addresses people who have
currently either constructed or taken over and nmaintained a
cabi n.

SENATOR SEEKINS said probably sone people. He said he’'s not
sure of the permtting process but BLM said they would cite
peopl e using the cabins, under state |aw If we can show these
people have trapped there in the past 24 nonths and have
established traplines, this mght allow them the opportunity to
continue without federal interference.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if conceptual |anguage could be that a
trapper nust have received a permt for snowrobile access in the
past 24 nonths to access the trapline.

SENATOR SEEKI NS suggested that a trapper who has taken fur needs
totell the state where he’'s trapped or took the aninal.

MR. ROBUS said this was correct.

SENATOR SEEKINS said it would solve his problemif it could be
shown through ADF&G trapping forns or sone docunentation that
peopl e have been trapping there, because then this |aw would
exenpt themfromthat restriction.

SENATOR LINCOLN said this was her concern as well. She asked
M. Robus about ensuring that nobody would get around this
conceptual |anguage.

SENATOR SEEKINS said, “That’'s up to us to do that, not M.
Robus. ”

SENATOR LI NCOLN said, “M. Robus said that this would work, that
there’s a way that they can show that they have indeed trapped
in the area. And if you're saying that there is a way to do
that, then I want assurance that there is no way that they can
get around this.”

MR. ROBUS said that on state sealing fornms, the trapper has to
report the locality where that fur was taken. There is a little
fuzzi ness because people don’t want to reveal this.

TAPE 04-20, SIDE B

MR ROBUS continued that those records are stored and are
available to enforcenent in the future.

32
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



SENATOR LI NCOLN noved the conceptual anendnent.

SENATOR SEEKI NS said he believes he and Senator Lincoln were now
on the sanme page. If it can be shown through the state forns
that soneone actually trapped within that vicinity and the Haul
Road was used as access, then they're exenpt from this
restriction; “if that’s where we're going, | have no problem
with that, it’s a friendly anmendnent.”

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if there was any objection to the
anendnent and acknowl edged that there was no objection
[ Avendnment 1 was treated as adopted.]

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to Senator Seekins’s conment that SB
391 just be incorporated into the other piece of |egislation
that he and Senator O son were working on, and asked if SB 391
shoul d have a sunset cl ause.

SENATOR SEEKINS said for the record that if he and Senator Q son
work out a commttee substitute (CS) that fits this conceptua
| anguage, he woul d just not pursue SB 391 any | onger.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said SB 391 m ght nove along and the other bil
m ght not.

SENATOR SEEKI NS said the differences could be worked out in the
Senate Fi nance committee.

The commttee took a brief at-ease.

CO CHAIR CONDERY noved to report SB 391 as anended to the next
commttee of referral.

SENATOR OLSON obj ect ed.

A roll <call vote was taken. Senator Therriault, Co-Chair
Cowdery, and Co-Chair Wagoner voted in favor of the notion;
Senators Lincoln and O son voted against it. Therefore CSSB 391

(TRA) nmoved from the Senate Transportation Standing Committee by
a vote of 3 to 2.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 4:10 p. m

33
SENATE TRA COW TTEE April 27, 2004



